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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 04029003
450 Fifth Street N.W.

Washington, DC 20549

Re:  Filings for All Listed Parties as Attached in Exhibit A Pursuant to Section 33(a) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act™).

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Enclosed for filing pursuant to Section 33(a) of the 1940 Act, on behalf of all listed parties
named in attached Exhibit A, as applicable, is a copy of a Complaint filed by a shareholder of the
Fund in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey in the matter of Frank Tricarico
v. Franklin Resources, Inc., et al. Case No. CV-04-1052 JAP.

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by date-stamping the enclosed copy of this letter and
returning it in the envelope provided.

If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned at (650) 312-4843.

Sincerely, @&%SE@

Mtk S el /Wﬁ o

Aliya Gordon | OSSN
Associate Corporate Counsel W
Enclosure

Barbara J. Green, Esq. (w/o enclosure)
Murray L. Simpson, Esq. (w/o enclosure)



Fund/Trust Name

811 Number

Adviser

Adjustable Rate

Securities 811-6242 Franklin Advisers,

Portfolio Inc.

Franklin

California Tax- 811-730 Franklin Advisers,

Free Income Fund, Inc.

Inc.

Franklin

California Tax- 811-4356 Franklin Advisers,

Free Trust Inc.

Franklin Capital

Growth Fund 811-334 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Custodian )

Funds, Inc. 811-537 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Custodian

Funds, Inc.— Franklin

Franklin Growth 811-537 Investment

Fund Advisory Services,
Inc.

Franklin Federal

Money Fund 811-3052 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Federal

Tax-Free Income 811-23395 Franklin Advisers,

Fund Inc.

Franklin Floating

Rate Master Trust 811-09869 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Global

Trust-

-Global Aggressive Franklin Advisers,

Growth Inc.

-Global Growth 811-10157 (subadvised by

-Internat’1l
Smaller Cos.
Growth

Fiduciary
International,
Inc.)

Franklin Globkal
Trust-
-Fiduciary
Eurcpean Smaller
Companies




-Fiduciary Large
Capitalization
Growth and Income
-Fiduciary Small

Capitalization

Equity Fiduciary

-Fiduciary Core International,

Fixed Income 811-10157 Inc.

-Fiduciary Core (subadvised by

Plus Fixed Income Franklin

-Fiduciary High Advisers, Inc.)

Income

Franklin Gold and

Precious Metals 811-1700 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin High 811-1608 Franklin Advisers,

Income Trust Inc.

Franklin Investors

Securities Trust 811-4986 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.
Franklin Advisory

Franklin Managed 811-4894 Services, Inc.

Trust

Franklin Money 811-2605 Franklin Advisers,

Fund Inc.

Franklin Municipal

Securities Trust 811-6481 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Mutual Franklin Mutual

Series Fund, Inc. 811-5387 Advisers, Inc.

Franklin New York

Tax-Free Income 811-3479% Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin New York

Tax-Free Trust 811-4787 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Real

Estate Securities 811-8034 Franklin Advisers,

Trust Inc.

Franklin Strategic

Mortgage Portfolic | 811-7288 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Strategic 811-6243 Franklin Advisers,

Series

-all except U.S.
Long-Short

Inc.

(U.S. L-8
subadvised by
Franklin Templeton




Alternative
Strategies, Inc.

Franklin Tax-

Exempt Money Fund 811-3193 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Tax-Free 811-4149 Franklin Advisers,

Trust Inc.

Franklin Templeton

Fund Allocator 811-7851 Franklin Advisers,

Series Inc.

Franklin Templeton

Global Trust 811-4450 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Templeton Franklin Advisers,

International 811-6336 Inc.

Trust

Templeton Foreign -subadvised by

Smaller Cos. Templeton
Investment
Counsel, LLC and
further subadvised

Templeton Global by Franklin

Long-Short Templeton
Investments (Asia)
Limited
-subadvised by
Templeton Global
Advisors, Ltd.

Franklin Templeton

Money Fund Trust 811-8962 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Templeton

Variable Insurance

Products Trust 811-5583 Franklin Advisers,

-Templeton
Developing Markets

-Templeton Global

Asset Allocation

-Templeton Growth
Securities

Inc.

Templeton Asset
Management, Ltd.

Templeton
Investment
Counsel, Inc.
(subadvised by
Franklin Advisers,
Inc.)




-Templeton Global
Advisors, Ltd.
(subadvised by
Templeton Asset
Management, Ltd.

Franklin Value

Franklin Advisory

Investors Trust 811-5878 Services, LLC

Institutional 811-4267 Franklin Advisers,

Fiduciary Trust Inc.

The Money Market

Portfolios 811-7038 Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Franklin Universal

Trust 811-5569 Franklin Advisers,

(closed end ) Inc.

Templeton China 811-7876 Templeton Asset

World Management, Ltd.

Templeton Templeton Asset

Developing Markets |811-6378 Management, Ltd.

Trust

Templeton Funds, 811-2781 Templeton Global

Inc. Advisors, Ltd.

Templeton Global Templeton Internat’l (ex

Investment Trust 811-8226 EM) Fund-
Templeton Global
Advisors, Ltd.
FT Non-U.S. Dynamic Core
Equity Series-
Franklin Templeton
Alternative
Strategies, Inc.
-subadvised by
Fiduciary
Internat'l, Inc.

Templeton Global Templeton

Cpportunities 811-5914 Investment

Trust Counsel, LLC

Templeton Global Templeton

Smaller Companies 811-3143 Investment

Fund, Inc.

Counsel, LLC

-subadvised by F-T
Investments (Asia)




Ltd

Templeton Growth

Templeton Global

Fund, Inc. 811-4892 Advisors, Ltd.
Templeton Income 811-4706 Franklin Advisers,
Trust Inc.

Not sure if

mentioned in

Complaint

directly, but 811-6135 Emerging Markets

Templeton
Institutional
Funds, Inc.

Series -
Templeton Asset
Management, Ltd.

Emerging Fixed
Income Markets
Series -

Franklin Advisers,
Inc.

Foreign Equity Series —
Templeton
Investment
Counsel, Inc.

Foreign Smaller Companies
Series —

Templeton
Investment

Counsel, LLC
-subadvised by FT
Investments (Asia)
Limited

FT Non U.S. Core Equity
Series —

FT Alternative
Strategies, Inc.
-subadvised by
Fiduciary
Internat'l, Inc.




Patrick L. Roceo (PKB621)

Jemnifer A. Sullivan (IS 6957)
SHALOYV STONE & BONNER LLP
163 Madison Avenue

P.O. Box 1277

Murristown, New Jersey 07962-1277
(973) 775-8997

Marvin L. Frank

Eric J, Belfi

RADIN, MURRAY & FIFRANK LLL
275 Madison Avenuc

New York, New York 10016

Michael M. Goldberg

CLANCY RINKOW & COT.DRERGITI P
1801 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 311

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Attomeys for Plaintiff

UNITED STATES DISTRICT CbURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY PUBLIC

FRANK TRICARICG, Individually and On Bchalf
OFf Al Others Similarly Sitnated,

Plaintift,
vs.

FRANKLIN RESOURCES, INC., FRANKLIN
ADVISERS, INC., TEMPLETON/FRANKLIN
INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC., FRANKLIN
PRIVATE CLIENT SERVICES, INC.,
FRANKLIN MUTUAL ADVISERS, LL.C,
TEMPLETON GLOBAL ADVISORS LIMITED,
HARRIS J. ASHTON, 8. JOSEPH
FORTUNATO, ANDREW H. {INES, JR.,
BETTY P. KRAHMER, GORDON S,
MACKLIN, FRED R. MILSAPS, NICHOLAS E.
BRADY, CHARLES B. JOHN3ZON, RUPLCRT II.
JOHNSON, JR., and JOHN DOES 1-100,

Dcfendants,

[Caption continues on neve page]
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LASS

FOR EXCESSIVE FEES IN
VIOLATION OF SECTIONS
34(h). 36(b) AND 48(n) OF THE
INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT
AND SECTIONS 206 AND 215 O¥
THE INVESTMENT ADVISERS
ACT, AND FOR BREACHES OF
FIDUCIARY DUTY

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED




FRANKLIN AGE HIGH INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN ADJUSTABLE U S.
GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND,
FRANKLIN AGGRESSIVE GROWTH FUND,
FRANKLIN ALABAMA TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, FRANKLIN ARIZONA TAX-FREE
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN BALANCE
SHEET INVESTMENT FUND, FRANKLIN
DIOTECIINOLOQY DIGCOVERY TUIND,
FRANKLIN BLUE CHIT FUND, FRANKLIN
CALIFORNIA HIGH YIELD MUNICIPAL
FUND, FRANKLIN CALIFORNIA INSURED

TAX-FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
CALIRORNIA INTERMEDIATE-TERM TAX -
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
CALIFORNIA LIMITED TERM TAX-FREE
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN CALIFORNIA
TAX-EXEMPT MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN
CALIFORNIA TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN CAPITAL GROWTH FUND, :
FRANKLIN COLORADO TAX-FREE INCOME :
FUND, FRANKLIN CONNECTICUT TAX-
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES FUND,
FRANKLIN DOUBLE TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, FRANKLIN DYNATECH FUND,
FRANKLIN EQUITY INCOME EUND,
FRANKLIN FEDERAL INTERMEDIATE-
TERM TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN FEDERAL LIMITED TERIV TAX-
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN FEDERAL
MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN FEDERAL TAX-
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN FLEX CAP

GROWTH FUND, FRANKLIN FLOATING
RATE DAILY ACCESS FUND, FRANKLIN

FLOATING RATE TRUST, FRANKLIN
FLORIDA INSURED TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, TRANKLIN FLORIDA TAX-FREE
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN GEORGIA TAX-
FREE INCOMT FIIND, FRANKT.IN GLOBAL
AGGRESSIVE GROWTH FUND, FRANKLIN
GLOBAL COMMUNICATIONS FUND,
FRANKLIN GLOBAI. GROWTH FUND,

[Caption continues on next page)



FRANKLIN GLOBAL HEALTH CARE FUND,
FRANKLIN GOLD AND PRECIOUS METALS
FUND, FRANKLIN GROWTH FUND, :
FRANKLIN HIGH YIELD TAX-FREE INCOME :
FUND, FRANKLIN INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN INSURED TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY TAX-FREE
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN LARGE CAP
OROWTII FUND, FRANKLIN LARGE CAF .
VALUE FUND, FRANKLIN LOUISIANA TAX-
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
MARYLAND TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN MASSACHUSETTS INSURED
TAX.-FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
MICHIGAN INSURED TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, FRANKLIN MICROCAP VALUE
FUND, FRANKLIN MINNESOTA INSURED .
TAX-FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN
MISSOURI TAX-FREE INCOME FUND.
FRANKLIN MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN
NATURAL RESOURCES FUND, FRANKLIN
NEW JERSEY TAX-FREE INCOME FUND, :
FRANKLIN NEW YORK INSURED TAX-FREE :
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN NEW YORK :
INTERMEDIATE-TERM TAX-FREE INCOME
FUND, FRANKLIN NEW YORK LIMITED
TERM TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN NEW YORK TAX-EXEMPT :
MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN NEW YORK TAX- :
FREE INCOME FUND, FKANKLIN NUKIH :
CAROLINA TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN OHIO INSURED TAX-FREE
INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN OREGON TAX-
FREE INCOME FUND, FRANKLIN :
PENNSYLVANIA TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN REAL ESTATE SECURITIES
FUND, FRANKLIN RISING DIVIDENDS
FUND, FRANKLIN SHORT-INTERMEDIATE

U.S. GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND,
FRANKT N SMATY. QAP GROWTH RITNDY 17,

FRANKLIN SMALL CAP VALUE FUND,
FRANKLIN SMALL-MID CAP GROWTH
FUND, FRANKLIN STRATEGIC INCOME

[Caption continues on next page)



FUND, FRANKLIN STRATEGIC MORTGAGE
PORTFOLIO, FRANKLIN TAX-EXEMPT
MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN TECHNOLOGY
FUND, FRANKLIN TEMPLETON :
CONSERVATIVE TARGET FUND, FRANKLIN
TEMPLETON COREFOLIO ALLOCATION ;
FUND, FRANKLIN TEMPLETON FOUNDING
FONDS ALLOCATION FUND, FRANKLIN
TENMPLETOW GROWTH TARQET FUND,
FRANKLIN TEMPLETON HARD CURRENCY
FUND, FRANKLIN TEMPLETON MODERATE :
TARGET FUND, FRANKLIN TEMPLETON :
MONEY FUND, FRANKLIN TENNESSEE
MUNICIPAL BOND FUND, FRAMEKLIM
TEXAS TAX-FREE INCOME FUND,
FRANKLIN TOTAL RETURN FUND, :
FRANKLIN U.8. GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
FUND, FRANKLIN U.S. LONG-SHORT FUND, :
FRANKLIN UTILITIES FUND, FRANKLIN
VIRGINIA TAX-FREE INCOME FIUIND,
TEMPLETON CHINA WORLD FUND,
TEMPLETON DEVELOPING MARKETS
TRUST, TEMPLETON FOREIGN FUND,

TEMPLETON FOREIGN SMALLER
COMPANIES FUND, TEMPLETON GLOBAL

BOND FUND, TEMPLETON GLOBAL LONG-
SHORT F'UND, TEMPLETON GLOBAL
OPPORTUNITIES TRUST, TEMPLETON
GLOBAL SMALLER COMPANIES FUND,
INC., TEMPLETON GROWTH FUND, INU,,
TEMPLETON INTERNATIONAL (EX EM) !
FUND, TEMPLETON LATIN AMERICA FUND,
TEMPLETON PACIFIC GROWTH FUND, :
TEMPLETON WORLD FUND, MUTUAL
BEACON IF'UND, MUTUAL DISCOVERY
FUND, MUTUAL EUROPEAN FUND,
MUTUAL FINANCIAL SERVICES FUND,
MUTUAL QUALTFIED FUND, MUTUAL

RECOVERY FUND, MUTUAL SHARES FUND :
(collectively known as the “FRANKT.IN .

FUNDS™),

Nominal Defendants,




Plantit; by and through his counsel, alleges the following based upon the investigation
of counsel, which included a review of Unitcd States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) filings, as well as other regulatory filings, reports, and advisories, press releases, media
rcports, news articles, academic literature, and academic studies. Plaintiff believes that
substantial additional evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a

teaseuable vpponusily for discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1, Plaintiff brings this action as a class action on behalf of investors in mutual funds
belonging to the Franklin Resources, Inc. (“Franklin Resources™) family of mutual funds (the
“Franklin Funds™), and derivatively on behalf ¢l the Franklin Funds, against the Franklin Funds
investment advisers, their corporate parents and the Franklin Funds directors and trustees.

2. This complaint alleges that the Investment Adviser Defendants (as defined herein)
drew upon the asscts of the Franklin I'unds to pay brokers to aggressively push Franklin Funds
over other funds, and that the Inveshnent Adviser Detendants concealed such paymenis from
investors by disguising them as brokerage commissions. Such brokerage commissions, though
payable from fund assets, are not disclosed to investors in the Franklin Funds public filings or
elsewhere,

3 Thus Franklin Funds investors were induced 10 purchase Franklin Funds by
brokers who received undiselosed payments from the Investment Adviser Defendants to push
Frarklin Funds over other mutual funds and who therefore had an undisclosed conflict of
interest. Then, once invested in one or more of the Franklin Funds, Franklin Funds investors
were charged and paid undisclosed fees that were improperly used to pay brokers to aggressively

push Franklin Fuads to yet other brokerage clients.



4. ‘The Investment Adviser Defendants were motivated to make these seeret
payments to finance the improper marketing of Franklin Funds because their foes were
calculated as a percentage of funds under management and, therefore, tended to increase as the
number of Franklin Funds investors grew. For example, as stated in Franklin Resources’ annual
report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for fiscal year ended Septeraber 30, 2003, “{ilnvestment
sanageienl feey luaeased 276 Lo Oscal 2003 conslsient widi a 3% increase In stmple monthly
average assets under management” and “{ilavestment management fees increased 4% in fiscal
2002 primarily due o increased net sales, which increased assets under management.” The
Investment Adviser Defendants attempted to justify this conduct on the ground that by increasing
the Franklin Funds assets they were creating cconomics of scale that inured to the benefit of
investors but, in truth and in fact, Franklin Funds investors received none of the benefits of these
purported economies of scale. Rather, fees and costs associated with the Franklin Funds steadity
increased during the Class Period (as defined herein), in Jarge part because the Investment
Adviser Defendants continued to skim from the Franklin Funds to finance their ongoing
marketing campaign. The Frankiin Funds directors and trustees, who purported 1o be Franklin
Fuuds investor watchdogs, knowingly or recklessly permitted this conduct to occur.

S By engaging in this conduct, the Investment Adviser Defeudants, and the
defendant entities that control them, breached their statutorily-defined fiduciary duties under
Scctions 36(a) and (b) of the Inveatment Company Aot of 1940 (the “Investment Company Act™)
and Sections 206 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Investment Advisers Act™),
breached their common Jaw fiduciary duties, and knowingly aided and abetted the brokers in the
breach of fiduciary duties o their clients. The Investment Adviser Defendants also violated
Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act because, to further their improper campaign, they

madc untrue statements of material fact in fund rcgistration statements, and material omissions,



with respect to the procedurc for determining the amount of fees payable to the Jnvestment
Adviser Defendants and with respect to the improper uses to which the fees were put.
Additionally, the Franklin Fands directors and trustees breached their common law fiduciary
duties to the Franklin I'unds investors by knowingly or recklessly allowing the improper conduct
alleged herein to occur and harm Franklin Funds investors.
G. Qu Januwry 28, 2004, e Loy Angeles Temey publishied an ardcele about a Senate

conunittee hearing on mutual fund abuses which stated, in pertinent part, as follows:

“The murtual fund industry is indeed the world’s largest skimming

operation,” aaid Sen. Peter Fitagarald (R TIL}, chairman of the ponol,

comparing the scandai-plagued industry to “a $7-trillion trough” exploited

by (und managers, brokers and other insiders.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. The claims asscrted hercin arise under and pursuant to Sections 34(b), 36(b) and
48(a) of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.8.C. §§80a-33(b), 80a-35(a) and (b) and 80a-47(a),
Sections 206 and 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.8.C. §§80b-6 and 80b-15, and
common law,

8. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to
Scclion 44 of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.8.C, §80a 43; Svction 214 of the Investmont
Advisers Act, 15U.8.C. §80b-14; and 28 U.S.C. § 1391{b).

9. Many of the acts charged herein, including the preparation and dissemination of
materially false and misleading information, occurred in substantial part in this District.
Defendants conducted other substantial business within this Distriet and many Class members
reside wiihin this District. Defendant Franklin Mutual Adviscrs, LLC (“Franklin Mutual

Advisers™) was al all relevant times, aud still is, headguartered in this District.



10, Incomection with the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, dircctly or
indirectly, used the means and instrumenialities of interstate commerce, including, but nol
Jimited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of the national
securities markets.

PARTIES

11, Plaintiff Frank Tricarice purchased during the Class Priivd aut continues 0 own
shares or units of the Franklin Income Fund (Class A) and has been damagecd by the conduet
alleged herein,

| 12, Defendant Franklin Resources is a California-based corporation and maintains its
corporate headquarters af One Franklin Parkway, Building 920, San Mateo, California 94403,
Franklin Resources, through its subsidiaries, provides retail and institutional assel management
services (hroughout the world under the trade name Franklin Templeton Investments. Franklin
Resources is the ultimate parcnt of all of the defendunts bearing the Franklin and/or Templeton
names, As of September 3, 2003, Franklin Resources had $301.9 billion in assets under
management with approximately 14.2 miilion billable shareholder accounts worldwide. I'ranklin

Resources securities trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BEN.”

13.  Delendant Franklin Advisers, Inc. (“Franklin Advisers’) is registered as an
investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act and, along with Templeton/Franklin
Investment Services, Inc. (“Templeton/Franklin Investment’”), Franklin Mutua] Advigers,
Franklin Private Client Services, Inc. (“Tranklin Private Client”} and Templeton Global Advisors
Limited (“Templeton Global Advisors™), managed and advised the Franklin Funds during the
Class Period. During this period, Franklin Advisers, along with Templetor/Franklin Investment,

Franklin Mutual Advisers, Franklin Private Client and Templeton Global Advisors, had ultimate



responsibihily for overseeing the day-to-day management ot the Franklin Funds. Vranklin
Advisers is located at One Y'ranklin Parkway, San Mateo, California 94403,

14, Defendant Templeton/Franklin Investment, doing business as “Templeton Private
Client Group,” is registered as an investment adviser under the Invesiment Advisers Act and,
along with Franklin Advisers, Franklin Mutual Advisers, Franklin Private Clicnt and Templeton
CGlobal Advisors, managed and advised the Franhty Punds dudug e Class Perdud, Durlng ihis
period, Templeton/Franklin Investment, along with Franklin Advisers, Franklin Mutual Advisers,
Franklin Private Client and Templeton Global Advisors, had uliimate respousibility for
overseeing the day-to-day management of the Franklin Funds. TcmpictonJFranklinInvcstmcm is
located at One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, California 94403.

15, Defendant Franklin Private Client is registered as an investment adviscr under the
Investment Adviscrs Act and, along with Franklin Advisers, Franklin Mutual Advisers,
Templeton/Franklin Investment and Templeton Global Advisors, managed and advised the
Franklin Funds during the Class Period. Turing this period, Franklin Private Client, along with
Franklin Advisers, Franklin Mutual Advisers, Templeton/Tranklin Investment and Templeton
Global Advisors, had ultimate responsibility for overseeing the day-to-day management of the
Franklin Funds. Franklin Private Client is located at One Franklin Patkway, San Mateo,
California 94403,

16, Defendant Franklin Mutual Advisers ig registered as an investment adviser under
the Investment Advisers Act and, along with Franklin Advisers, Franklin Private Client,
Templeton/Franklin Investment and Templeton Global Advisors, managed and advised the
Franklin Funds during the Class Period. During this period, Franklin Mutual Advisers, along
with Franklin Private Client, Franklin Advisers, Templeton/Franklin Investment and Templeton

Global Advisors, had ultimate responsibility for oversceing the day-to-day management of the



Franklin Funds. Franklin Mutual Advisers is located at 51 John F. Kennedy Parkway, Short

ITills, New Jersey 07078,

17.  Defendant Templeton Global Advisors is registered as an investment adviser
under the Investment Advisces Act and, along with Franklin Mutual Advisees, Franklin Advisers,
Franklin Private Client and Templeton/Franklin Investment, managed and advised the Franklin
Funds dwing the Class Perivd. Duting Wiy period, Templewn Global Advisors, along with
Franklin Mutual Advisers, Franklin Private Client, Pranklin Advisers and Templeton/Franklin
Tnvesiment, had ultimate responsibility for oversesing the day-to-day manapement of the
Franklin TFunds. Templeton Global Advisors is located at Lyford Cay, Nassau, Bahamas,

18, Franklin Advisers, Franklin Muiual Advisers, Templcton/Franklin Investment,
Franklin Private Clicnt and Templeton Global Advisors arc herein collectively known as the
“Investment Adviser Defendants.” Investment managemeni fees payable to the Investment
Adviser Defendants are calculated as a percentage of fund assets under management.

19, Defendants Haris J. Ashton (*Ashton™), S. Joseph Fortunato (“Fortunate”),
Andrew H. Hines, Jr. (*Hines"), Betty P. Krahmer (“Krahiner”), Gordon S. Macklin
(*Macklin™), Fred R. Nfilsaps (“Milsaps™), Nicholas F. Brady ("Brady™), Charles B. Johnson and
Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. were directors of Templeton [Funds, Inc., the registrant of & subset of the
Franklin Funds, including the Templeton Forcign Fund, during the Class Period. Additionally:

(a) Brady was a Director of Templeton Funds, Inc. and during the Class
Period oversaw 62 portfolios in the Franklin Templeton Investments fund complex. In the past
five years, Brady served as Director of Templeton Capital Advisors Ltd. and Franklin Templeton
Investment Fund.

() Charies B Johnson was a Director of Templeton Funds, Inc. and during the

Class Period oversaw 133 portfolios in the Franklin Templeton Investments fund complex. In



the past hve years, Charles B, Johnson scrved as Chairman of the Board of Franklin Resources,
Yice President of Franklin Templeton Distributors, Inc., and officer and/or director or trustee, as
the case may be of 46 of the investment companies in Franklin Templctén Investments. Charles
B, Johnson’s business address is One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA 94403.
(¢)  Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. was & Dircctor and Vice President of Templeton
Tunds, Ine. and duiing the Class Peidod oversaw 1106 portfolos in the Franklin lemplcton
Investments fund complex. In the past five years, Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. served as Vice
Chairman of Franklin Resources, Vice President and Director of Franklin Templeton
Distributors, Inc., Director of Franklin Adviscrs, Ine. and Frankiin Investment Advisory
Services, Inc., Senior Vice President of Franklin Advisory Services, LLC and officer and/or
director or trustee, as the case may be, of 49 of the investment companics in Franklin Templeton
Investments. Rupert H. Juhnson, Jr.’s business address is One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo,
CA 94403-1906.
(d)  In2003, defendants Ashton, Fortunato, Hines, Krahmer, Macklin and

Milsaps served on boards charged with supervising between 21 and 142 series of Franklin Funds,
In 2003, Ashton, Fortunato, Hines, Krahmer, Macklin, Milsaps and Brady received
compensation of $369,500, $369,500, $202,225, $135,500, $369,500, $204,135 and $135,900,
respectively, for their service as directors overseeing the Franklin Funds, The business address
of defendants Ashton, Fortunato, Hines, Krahmer, Macklin, Milsaps and BDrady is 500 Cast
Browurd Bivd., Suite 2100, Fort Lauderdale, FL 333943091,

20.  Defendants John Does 1-100 were directors or trustecs charged with overseeing
the Franklin Funds during the Class Period, and any other wrongdoers later discovered, whose

identities have yet to be ascertained and which will be determined during the course of plaintiffy’

counsel’s ongoing investigation.



21.  Defendants Ashton, Fortunato, Hines, Krahmer, Macklin, Milsaps, Brady, Charles
B. Johnson, Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. and John Does 1-100 arc refewred to collectively herein as the
“Director Defendants.”

22, Nominal defcndants the Franklin unds, as identified in the caption of this
cornplaint and on the list annexed hereto as Exhibit A, are open-ended management companies
sonsiating of the capital invested by mutual fund sharcholders, cach having o Lumd of direciors
charged with representing the interests of the shareholders in onc or a series of the funds. The
Franklin Funds are named as nominal defendants to the extent that they may be deemed
necessary and indispensable parties pursvant to Rule 19 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and to the oxtent necessary 1o ensure the availability of adequate remedies,

RELATED NON-PARTIES

25, Franklin/Templeton Distributors, Inc. (“Distributors™), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Franklin Resources, acts as the principal underwniter and distributor of shares of most of
Trenkliu Resuurves® UL S ~reglswred open-end muual tunds. Dauring Tiscal year 2003,
Templeton/Franklin Investment Services (“TFIS”) served as principal underwriter and distributer
for severa) of Franklin Resources® U.S, funds. Franklin Resources eurns its underwriting and
distribution fees primanly by distributing the Franklin Funds pursuant to distribution agrecments
between Distributors or TFIS and the Franklin Funds.

LAINTIFE'S CLASS ACTI IONS

26, Plaintiff brings certain of these ¢laims as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule
of Civil Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all persons or entities who
purchased, redeemed or held shares ot like interests in any of the Franklin Funds between March
2, 1999 and November 17, 2003, inclusive, and who were damaged thereby (the “Class™).

Excluded from the Class arc defendants, members of their immediate families and their legal



representaitves, heies, successors ot assigns and any entity in which defendaats have or had a
controlling interest.

27, The members of the Class are so humerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this (ime and
can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, plaintif belicves that there are many
thousands of menbers in the propused Class, Record owners and other members of the Class
may be identified from records maintained by the Franklin Funds and the Investment Adviser
Defendants and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice
similar to that customarily used in securities ¢lass actions.

28.  PlaintifPs claims are typical of the ¢laims of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class are similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful eonduet in viclation of
federal law that is complained of herein,

29.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequatcly protect the interests of the members of the
{ lass and has reluined counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.

30. Common questions of law and fact cxist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely aflecting individual members of the Class. Among the

questions of law and fact common to the Cluss are:

{a)  whether the Investment Company Act was violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein,

()  whether the Investment Advisers Act was violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;

{t)  whether the Investment Adviser Defendants breached their cormmon law

fiduciary dutics and/or knowingly aided and abctted common law breaches of fiduciary duties;



{d)  whether statcments made by defendants to the investing public during the
Class Period misrepresented or omilted to disclose material facts about the business, operations
and financial statcments of the Franklin Funds; and

{e) 1o what cxtent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of damages.

31, Aclass activn ls supsivr o all other avallable methods for the tar and eflicient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as
the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation make it virtually impossible for members of the Clags to
individually redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of
ihis action as a class action,

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

The Director Defendants Breached Their
Fiduciary Duties To Franklio Funds Investors

32.  Tranklin Funds public filings state that the Franklin Funds have boards of director
or trustees that are responsible for the management aod supervision of each fund. In this regard,
the Swtement of Additional Information attavhicd tu e Junuary 1, 2003 Registration Statement
for funds offered by Templeton Funds, Inc, (the “Statement of Additional Information™), which
includes the Templeton Foreign Fund, which is available to the investor upon request, is typical
of the Statements of Additiona! Information availeble for other Franklin Funds. 1t states the
following:

Templeton Funds, Inc. (Company) has a board of directors. Hach
director will serve until (hat person’s successor is elected and
qualified. The board is responsible for the ovcrall management of

the Company, including general supervision and review of cach
Fund's investment activitics. The board, in tum, elects the officers
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33.

of the Company who are responsible for administering the
Company’s day-to-day operations.

Moreover, the most recent Form 10-K for Franklin Resources stated, with respect

to the dutics of the dircctors and (rustees vis-3-vis the funds’ investment advisers, as follows:

Cur subsidiary investment advisers conduct investment research
and determine which securities the U.S.-registered open-end and
closed-end funds will purchase, hold or sell under the supervision
and oversight af the fund’s boand of frusteed, directvrs or
administrative managers

In general, the management agreements for our U.S.-registered
open-end and closcd-end funds must be renewed each year, and
must be specifically approved annualiy by a vote of such funds’
board of trustees gr directors or by a vote of the holders of a
majority of such funds’ outstanding voting securitiey

b 4 + -

Our management personnel and the fund directors or boards of
trustees regularly review the fund advicory and other
administrative fee structures in light of fund performance, the
level and range of sorvices pravided, industry conditions and other
relevant factors. [Emphasis added.]

The directors or trustees of each fund are thus responsible for the review and approval of the

advisory and fee agreements between the investrent adviscrs and the Franklin Funds.

34.

Another section of the Statement of Additional Information sets forth in greater

detail the purported process by which the investment managers are approved:

35.

Based upon it revicw of [certain) material and information
together with such other information as it deemed relevant, the
board, including a majority of independent directors, concluded
that continuance of the management agreement was appropriate
and in the best interest of Fund shareholders. [Emphasis added.]

The Investment Company Institute (“ICI”), of which Franklin Resources is 2

member, recently described the duties of mutual fund boards as follows:

1l



Mure thar 77 millton Americans have chosen mutual funds to gain

convenent access 10 a professionally managed and diversified porifolio of
investments,

Investors receive many other benefits by invesling in mutual funds,
including strong legal protoctions aud full disclosue. In additon,
shareholders gain an extra layer of protection because each mutual fund
has a board of directors looking out for shareholders’ interests.

Unlike the directors of other corporations, mutual fund directors are
responsible for profecting ransumers, in thic raso, the funde’ invasiors.
The unique "watchdog” role, which does not exist in any other type of
company in America, provides investors with the confidence of knowing
the directors oversee the advisers who manage and service their
investnents.

In particular, under the Investment Company Act of 1940, the board of
directors of a mutual fund is charged with looking after how the fund
operates and overseeing matters where the interests of the fund and its
sharcholders differ from the interests of ifs investment adviser or
management company, [Emphasis added,]’

36.  Intruth and in fuct, the Frankiin Funds boards of directors, i e. the Dircctor
Defendants, were captive to and controlled by Franklin Resources and the Tnvestment Adviser
Defendants. who induced the Directar Dafendants tn hreach {heir statutory and fidueiary duties
to manage and supervisc the Franklin Funds, approve all significant agreements and otherwise
take reasonable steps to prevent the Investment Adviser Defendants from skimming Franklin
Funds assets. In many cases, key Fraoklin Funds directors or trustees were employees or former
employees of the Investment Adviser Defendants and were beholden for their positions, not to
Franklin Funds investors, but, rather, to the Investment Adviser Defendants they were supposed

to oversee. The Director Defendants served for indefinite terms at the pleasure of the Investment

Adviser Defendants and formed supposedly independent committees, charged with responsibility

: The ICI describes itself as the national association of the U.S. investment company industry. Founded in

1940, its membership includes approximately 8,601 mutua) funds, 604 closed-end funds, 110 exchange-traded
funds, and six sponsors of unit investment trusts. Its nutual fund members have 86.6 million individual
shareholders and manage approximatsly $7.2 willion in investor assets. The quotation abave is excerpted from a
paper catitled Undersianding the Role of Mutual £ und Directors, available on the ICI's website at

htep:i o, ici,orgfissues/dirdro_mf_divectors.pdf.
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fur billtons of dollars of fund assels (much of which were comprised of investors” college and
retirement savings).

37.  Toenswe that the directors toed the line, the Investment Adviser Defendants
often recruited key fund directors from the ranks of Franklin Resources or the investment adviser
companies and paid them excessive salarics {or their service as directors. For example, Charles
B. Johnoon, o Dircetor of Templeton Funds, Tuu,, lias served as Chalrman Of the Hoard, Chief
Exceutive Officer and Dircctor of Franklin Resources for more than the past five years. During
the Class Period Charles B. Johnson oversaw 133 portfolios in the Franklin Templeton
Investments fund compliex. Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. was a Director and Vice President of
Templeion Funds, In¢. and during the Class Period served as Vice Chairman of Franklin
Resources, Vice President and Director of Franklin Templeton Distribulors, Tne,, Director of
Franklin Advisers, Inc. and Franklin Investment Advisory Services, Inc., Senjor Vice President
of Franklin Advisory Services, LLC and officer and/or director or trustee, as the case may be, of
49 of e investment companies in Franklin Templeton Tnvestments. During the Class Period,
Rupert H. Johnson, Jr. oversaw 116 portfolios in the Franklin Templeton Investments fund
complex.

38.  Inexchange for creating and managing the Franklin Funds, including the
Templeton Foreign Fund, the nvestment Adviser Defendants charged the Franklin Funds a
variety of fees, each of which was calculaled as a porcentage of assets undor managewient.
Henee, the more money invested in the funds, the greater the fees paid to Franklin Resources.

Ag stated in Franklin Resources’ arnual report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for Rscal year

ended September 30, 2003, Franklin Resources® “revenues depend to 4 large extent on the

amount of assets under management” and Franklin Resources “earns[s] most of [its] revenues

from fees linked 1o the amount of assels in the accounts that [it] advisc{s).”

13



39.  The success uf Frunklin Resources is dependent upon the continuation of the
investment advisory agreements between its subsidiary investment advisers and the mutual funds
they advisc. In this regard, the most recent Form 10-K for Franklin Resources stated the

following:

Investment management fees, our most substantial source of

revenue, arc based upen the doliar value of assets under
managemoent

If management agreements representing a significant portion of our
gssets under management were lerminated, it would have a
material adverse immpact on our Company. To date, none of our
management agreements with any of cur retail Franklin Templeton
mutual funds have been involuntarily terminaled,

40.  Intheory, the fees charged to fund investors are negotiated at arm’s-length
between the fund board and the investment management company and must be approved by the
independent members of the board. However, as a result of the Director Defendants’
denendence on the investment management nompany, and their failure to properly manage the
investment advisers, millions of dollars in Franklin Funds asscis were transferred through fees

payable from Franklin Funds asscts 10 the Investment Adviser Defendants that were of no benefit
to fund investors.

41,  Asaresult of these practices, the mutual fund industry was enormously profitabie
for Franklin Resources. In this regard, a Forbes atticle, published on September 15, 2003,
stated as follows:

The average net profit margin at publicly held mutual fond firms was
18.8% last year, blowing away the 14.9% margin for the financial industry
overall , ., . [fJur the wmust panl, cusomers do 10t enjoy the benefits of the
econoinies of scale created by having larger funds. Indeed, once a fund
reaches a ceriain critical mass, the directors know thal there is no
discernible benefit from having the fund become bigger by drawing in
more investors; in fact, they know the opposite to be true - once a fund

14



becomes 100 large it ioses the ability fo trade in and ouf of positions
withont hurting its investors,

¥ ¥ %

The fmutual fund] business grew 71-fold (28 fold ine real terms) in the
two decades through 1999, yet cosis as a percentage of assets somehow
managed to go up 29%. ... Fund vendors have a way of stacking their
boards with rubber stamps. As famed investor Warren Buffett opines in
Berkshire Hathaway's 2002 annual report: “Tens of thonsands of
“independent” directors, over more than gix decades, have failed
miserably.” A genuinely independent board would occasionally firc an
incompetent or overcharging fund advisor. That happens just about
never.” [Emphasis added.]
42.  Plaintiff and other members of the class never knew, nor could they have known.
from reading the (und prospectuses or otherwise, of the cxtent to which the Investment Adviser
Defendants were using so-called 12b-1 fecs, directed brokerage (as defined below) and

commissions to tmpropotly siphon assets frumn the funds.

The Investment Adviser Defendants Used
Rule 12b-1 Marketing Fees For Improper Purposes

43,  Rulc 12b-1. promulgated hy the &R prrcuant to the Inveoetmant Company Act,
prohibits mutual funds from directly or indireetly distributing or markeling their own shares
unless certain enumerated conditions sel forth in Rule 12b-1 are met. The Rule 12b-1
conditions, among others, ate that puyments for marketing must be made pursuant to a written
plan “describing all material aspects of the proposed financing of distribution;” all agreements
with any person relating to implementation of the plan must be in writing; (he plan must be
approved by a vote of the majority of the board of directors; and the board of directors must
review, at least quarterly, “a written report of the amounts so expended and the purposes for
which such caxpenditurcs weoie aade.” Additunally, the Jireciors “"have & duty 10 rcquest and
evaluale, and any person who is a party to any agresipent with such company relating to such

plan shall have a duty 1o furnish, such information as may reasonably be necessary to an
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Informed determination of whether the plan should be implemented or continued.” The directors
may continue the plan “only if the board of dircctors who vote to approve such implementation
or continvation conclude, in the exercise of reasonable business judgment, and in light of their
fiductary duties under state law and section 36(a) and (b) [15 U.S.C. 80a-35(a) and (b)] of the
Act that there is a reasonable likelihood that the plan witl benefit the company and its
shareholdars.” [Emphasia added.]

44, The exceptions to the Seclion 12b prohibition on mutual fund marketing were
enacted in 1980 under the theory that the marketing of mutual funds, all things being equal,
should be encouraged because increased investment in mutnal funds would presumably result in
cconomies of scale, the bencfits of which would be shifted from fund managers to investors,
During the Class Period, the Director Defendants authorized, and the Investment Adviser
Defendants collected, millions of dollars in purported Rule 12b-1 marketing and distribution
fees.

45.  However, the purported Rule 12b-1 fees charged to Franklin Funds investors were
highly improper because the conditions of Rule 12b-1 were not met, There was no “reasonable
likelihood” that the plan would benefit the company and its shareholders. On the contrary, as the
tunds were marketed and the number of fund investors increased, the economies of scale thereby
crealed, if any, were not passed on to Franklin Funds investors. Rather, Franklin Funds
management and other fees steadily increased and this was a red flag that the Direstos
Defendants knowingly or recklessly disregarded. If anything, the Franklin Funds markeling
efforts were creating diminished marginal returns under circumstances where increased fund size
corelated with reduced liquidity and fund performance. If the Director Defendants reviewed
written reports of the amounts expended pursuant o the Franklin Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan, and the

information pertaining to agrcoments entered into pursuant to the Rule 12b-1 Plan, on a quarterly
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basic as requived  which scems highily wiikely under the circumstances set forth herein — the
Dircetor Defendants either knowingly or recklessly failed to termiratc the plans and the
payments made pursuant 1 the Rule 12b-1 Plan, even though such payments not only harmed
existing Franklin Funds shareholders, but also werc improperly used to induce brokers to breach
their duties of loyalty to their prospective Franklin Funds investors.

46, Moreover, at Taast qiv claceer of Franklin Funds were closcd (v row uvestors
(“the Closed Yunds™) and, consequently, the so-called 12b-1 fecs could not possibly have been
used to market and distribute them. Nevertheless, the luvestinent Adviser Defendants received
Rule 12b-1 fees charged to the Closed Funds. The Closed Funds that charged such Rule 12b-1
fees are: Franklin Balance Sheet Investment Fund, Classes A, B and C; and Franklin Small Cap
Growth Fund I, Classes A, B and C.

47.  As set forth below, in viotation of Rule 12b-1 and Section 28(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act, defendants made additional undisclosed payments to brokers, in the form of
exoers sommissions, that were nut disyluscd 01 authorized by the Franklin Funds Rule 12b-1

plan.

The Investiment Adviser Defendants Charged Their
O~rorhead To Franldin Funds Investors Aud Sccretly Faild
Excessive Commissions To Brokers To Steer Clients To Franklin Funds

48.  Investment advisers routinely pay broker commissions on the purchase and sale of
fund securities, and such commissions may, under certain circumstances, properly he need to
purchase certain other services from brokers as well. Specifically, the Section 28(e) “safe
harbor” provision of the Securities Exchange Aot carves out an exception to the rule that requires
Investment management companies to obtain the best possible execution price for their trades.
Section 28(e) provides that fund managers shall not be deemed to have breached their fiduciary

duties “solely by reasen of [theit] having caused the account to pay a. . , broker . . . in excess of
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the amount of commission another . . . broker . . . wouid have charged for effecting the
transaction, if such person determined in good faith thai the amount of the commission is
reasonable in relation to the vajue of the brokerage and rescarch services provided.” 15 U.S.C.
§28(e) (emphasis added). 1n other words, funds are allowed to include in “commissions”
payment for not only purchase and sales execution, but also for specified services, which the
EEC has defined w inslude, “auy service hat provides fawiul and appropriate assistance 1o the
money manager in the performance of his investment decision-making responsibilities.™ The
commission amounts cﬁarged by brokerages to investment adviscrs in excess of the purchase and
sale charges are known within the industry as “Soft Dollarg.”

49.  The [nvestment Adviser Defendants went far beyond what is petmitted by the
Scetion 28(e) safe harbor. The Invesiment Adviser Defendants used Soft Dollare to pay
overhead costs (for items such as computer hardware and software) thus charging Franklin Funds
investors for costs not covered by the Section 28(c) safe harbor and that, consistent with the
invesiment advisers’ fiduciary duties, propetly should have been borne by the Investment
Adviser Defendants. The Investment Adviser Defendants also paid excessive commissions to

broker dealers on top of any rcal Soft Dollars to steer their clients to Franklin Tunds and dirceted
brokerage busincss to firms that favored Franklin Funds. Such payruents and directed-brokerage
payments were used to fund sales contests and other undisclosed financial incentives to push
Franklin Funds, These incontives crcated an undisclosed conflict of interest and caused brokers
to steer clients to Franklin Funds regardless of the funds’ investment quality relative to other
investmen! altematives and to thereby breach their duties of loyally. By paying the excessive
brokerage commissions, the fnvestment Adviser Defendants additionally violated Section 12 of

the Investment Company Act, because such payments were nol made pursuant to a valid Rule

12b-1 plan.
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>/  As stated above, the Statement of Additional Information, referred to in certain of

the Franklin Funds’ prospectuses and available to the investor upon request, stated as follows

with respect o Soft Dollars:

Distributors and/or its affiliates may provide financial support to
securities dealers that scll shares of Franklin Templeton funds,
This support is based primarily on the amount of salcs of fund
shares and/or total assets with Franklin Templeton funds. The
awount Of support may be affected dy: total sales, net sales; levels
of redemptions; the proportion of a sccurities dealer’s sales and
marketing efforts in Franklin Templeton funds; a sceurities
dealer’s support of, and participation in, Distributors' marketing
programs; @ securitics dealer’s compcensation programs for its
registered representativar; und the extent of a sccuritics dealer’s
marketing programs relating to Franklin Templeton Investments.
Financial support to securities dealers may be made by payments
from Distributors' resources, from Distributors’ retention of
underwriting concessions and, in the case of funds that have
Rule 126-1 plans, from payments to Distributors under such
plans. Emphasis added.]

58.  The Prospectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented, infer alia, the following
material and damaging adverse lucts which damaged plaintiff and other members of the Class:

{a}  that the Investment Adviser Defendants authorized the payment from fund
assets of excessive commissions to broker dealers in exchange for preferential marketing
pervioos and that such payments wers in lusavl uf tisiv (duclary dudes, n violation of Section
12b of the Investinent Company Act, and unprotected by any “safe harbor™;

(t)  that the Investment Adviser Defendants directed brokerage payments to
firms that faveored Franklin Funds, which was a form of marketing that was not disclosed in or
authorized by the Franklin Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan;

{¢)  that the Franklin Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan was not in campliance with Rule
12b-1, and that payments made pursuant to the plan were in violation of Section 12 of the

Investiment Company Act because, among other reasons, the plan was not properly evaluated by
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the Director Detendants and there was not a reasonable likelihood that the plan would bencfit the

company and its sharcholders;

(d)  that by paying brokers to aggressively sieer their clicnis to Frankiin Punds,
the Investment Adviser Defendants were knowingly aiding and abetting a breach of fiduciary
duties, and profiting from the brokers” improper conduct;

(e)  thatauy counumles of scale achieved by marketing of the Frauklin Funds
to new investors were not passed on to Franklin Funds tnvestors; on the contrary, as the Franklin
Funds grew, fces charged 1o Franklin Funds investors continued 0 increase;

5 that defendants impropeely used Seft Dollars and excessive commissions,
paid from Franklin Funds assets, to pay for overhead expenses the cost of which should have
been borne by Franklin Resources and the Investment Advicer Defendanis and not Franklin
'unds investors; and

{(g)  that the Director Defendants had abdicated their duties under the
Investment Company Act and their common law fiduciary duties, that they failed to monitor and
supervise the Investment Adviser Defendants and that, as a consequence, the Investment Adviser
Defendants were able to systematically skim miilions and millions of dollars from the Franklin
Funds.

COUNT
Against The Investment Adviser Defendants

For Violations Of Section 34(b) Of The Investment
Company Act On Bebalf Of The Class

59.  Plamtiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if

fully set forth herein.

60.  This Count is asserted against the Investment Adviser Defendants in their role as

investment advisers to the Franklin Funds,
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61.  The Investment Adviser Defendants made untrue statements of material fact in
registration statements and reponts filed and disscmipated pursuant to the Investment Company
Act and omitted to state facts necessary to provent Lhe statements made therein, in Jight of the
circumstances under which they were made, trom being materially false and misleading. The
Investment Adviser Defendants failed to disclose the following:

() that Whe Invesiment Adviser tefendants authorized the payment from fand
assets of excessive commissions to broker dealers in exchange lor preferential marketing
services and that such payments were in breach of their fiduciary duties, in violation of Section
12h of the Investrment Company Act, and unprotected by any “safe harbor™;

(b)  thal the Investment Adviser Defendants directed brokerage payments to
firms that favored Franklin Funds, which was a form of marketing that was not diselosed in or
authotized by the Franklin Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan;

{¢)  that the Frank)in Funds Rule 12b-1 Plan was not in compliance with Rule
12b-1, and thal payments made pursvant to the plan were in violation of Section 12 ¢f the
Investtnent Company Act because, among other reasons, the plan was not properly evaluated by
the Director Defendants and therc was not a reasonable likelihood that the plan would benefit the
company and its shareholders;

(d)  that by paying brokers to aggressively steer their clients to Franklin Funds,
the Investment Adviscr Defendants were knowingly aiding und abe(ling a breach of fduciary
duties, and profiting from the brokers’ improper conduct;

(e)  that any economies of scale achieved by marketing of the Franklin Funds
1o new investors were not passed on to Franklin Funds investors; on the contrary, as the Franklin

Funds grew, fees charged to Franklin Funds investors conlinued to increasc;
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) that detendants improperly used Soft Dollars and excessive commissions,
paid from Franklin Funds assets, to pay for overhead cxpenses the cost of which should have
been borne by Franklin Resources and the Investment Adviser Defendants and not Franklin
Funds investors; and

(g)  that the Direclor Defendants had abdicated their duties under the
Investment Company Act and theh vwnunon law (duclary dinies, that the Director Detendants
failed to monitor and supervise the Investment Adviser Defendants and that, as a consequence,
the Investment Adviser Defendants were able to systematicslly skim millions and millions of
dollars from the Franklin Funds,

62. By reason of the conduct described above, the Investment Adviser Defendants
violated Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act,
63,  Asadirect, proximate and foreseeable result of the Investment Adviser

Defendants’ viclation of Scetion 34(b} of the Investment Company Act, Franklin Funds investors

have 1mcurred damages.
64.  Plaintiff and the Class have been specially injured by Defendants’ violations of

Section 34(b) of the Investment Company Act. Such injuries were suffered directly by the

shareholders, rather than by the I'ranklin Funds themselves.

65.  The Invesiment Adviscr Defendants, mdividually and in concent, directly and
indirectly, by the ure, means or instrumentalities of interstatc commecrce andfor of the mails,
engaged and participated in a continnous course of conduct to conceal such adverse material

information.
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COUNT I

Against The Investinent Adviser Defendants Pursuant
To Section 36(b) Of The Investment Company Act
Derivatively On Behalf Of The Franklin Funds

66.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges cach and every allegation contained above and
ctherwise incorporates the allegations centained above.

&7. This Count ic brought by the Class (as Fraukliu Funds securiues holders) on
behalf of the Franklin Funds against the Investment Adviser Defendants for breach of their
fiduciary dutics as defiued by Section 36(b} of the Invesiment Company Act,

68.  The Investment Adviser Defendants had a fiduciary duty to the Franklin Funds
and the Class with respect to the receipt of compcensation for services and of payments of a
material nature made by and to the Investment Adviser Defendants.

69.  The Investment Adviser Defendants violated Section 36(b) by improperly
charging investors in the Franklin Funds purported Rulc 12b-1 markeling fees, and by drawing
vn Frank i Funds assets 10 make undisclosed payments of Soft Dollars and excessive
commissions, as defined herein, in violation of Rule 12b-1.

70. By reason of the conduct described above, the Investment Adviser Defendanls
violated Section 36(b) of the Investment Company Act.

71, Asadireet, proximate and foreseeable result of the Investment Adviser
Defendanis® hreach of the fiduciary duty of loyalty in their role as investment adviscrs to
Franklin Tunds investors, Franklin Funds and the Class have incurred milliens of dollars in
damages.

72.  Plaintiff, in this count, seeks to recover the Rule 12b-1 fees, Soft Dellars,

excessive commissions and the management fees charged the Franklin Funds by the Investment

Adviser Defendants,
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COUNT IIT

Against Frapklin Resources (As A Control Person Of The Investment Adviser
Defendants) And The Director Defendants (As Contred Persons Of The
Investment Adviser Defendants) For Violation Of Section 48(a)

Of The Iinvestment Company Act By The Class And
Derivatively On Behalf Of The Frankiie Funds

73.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and cvery allegation contained above as if
fully cet forth herein,

74.  This Count is brought pursuant to Section 48(a) of the Investment Company Act
against Franklin Resources as a contro] person of the Investment Adviser Defendants and the
Dircetor Defendants as control persons of the [nvestment Adviser Defendants who caused the
Investment Adviser Defendants to commit the violations of the Investment Company Act alleged
herein. It is appropriate to treat those delendants as a group for pleading purposes and to
presume that the misconduct complained of herein are the collective actions of Franklin
Resources and the Direetor Defendants.

75.  The Investment Adviser Delendants are liable under Sections 34(b) of ihe
Investment Company Act to the Class and under 36(b) of the Investment Company Act to the
Franklin Funds as set forth herein.

76.  Each of I'ranklin Resources and the Director Defendants were “control persons”
of the Investment Adviser Defendants and caused the violalions complained of herein, By virtue
of their posilions of operational control and/or authority over the Investment Adviser
Defendants, Franklin Resources and the Director Defendants directly and indiectly, had the
power and authority, and exercised the same, to cause the Investment Adviser Defendants to
engage in the wrongful conduct complained of herein.

77.  Pursuant to Section 48(a) of the Invesiment Company Act, by reason of the

foregoing, Franklin Resources and the Director Defendants ure liable to plaintiffs to the same
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GXICnL ax are me Investment Adviser Defendants for their primary violations of Sections 34(b)

and 36(b) of the Investment Company Act.

78. By virtuc of the foregoing, plaintiff and other Class members are entitled to
damages against Frankiin Resources and the Direetor Defendants.
COUNT IV
Against The Investmseul Adviser Defendants Under Section 215 Of The

Investment Advisers Act For Violations Of Scetion 206 Of The Investment
Advisers Act Derivatively On Behalf Of The Franklin Funds

79.  Plamtiff repeats and reallcges each and every allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein.

80.  This Count is based upon Section 215 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C.
§80b-15.

8l.  The Investment Adviser Defendants scrved as “investment advisers” to the
Franklin Funds and other members of the Class pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act.

82, Ax Gduclaries pursuant o the investment Advisers Act, the Investment Adviser
Defendants were required to scrve the Franklin Funds in 2 manner in accordance with the federal
Hiduciary standards set forth in Secticn 206 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.8.C. §80b-6,
governing the conduct of investment advisers.

83.  During the Class Period, the Investrent Adviser Defendants breached their
fiduciary duties 1o the Franklin Funds hy engaging in a deceptive contrivance, scheme, praclice
and course of conduct pursuant to which they knowingly and/or recklessly engaged in acts,
transactions, practices and courses of business which operated as a fraud upon the Franklin
Funds. As delailed above, the Investment Adviser Defendants skimmed money from the
Franklin Funds by charging and collecting fees from the Franklin Funds in violation of the

Investment Company Act and the Investment Advisers Act. The purpose and effect of said
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scherne, practice and course of conduct was to enrich the Investment Adviser Defendants, ameng
other defcndants, at the expensc of the Franklin Funds. The Tnvestment Adviser Defendants
breached their fiduciary duties owed to the Franklin Funds by engaging in the aforesaid
transactions, practices and courses of business knowingly or recklcssly so as 1o constitute o
deceit and fraud upon the Franklin Funds,

B4,  The Iuvesuncnl Adviser oTendants are lrable as direct participants in the wrongs
complained of herein. The Investment Adviser Defendants, because of their position of authority
and conrol over the Franklin Funds were able 1o and did control the fecs charged 10 and
collected from the Franklin Funds and otherwise contrql the operations of the Franklin Funds,

85.  The Investment Adviser Defendants had a duty to (1) disseminate accurate and
truthful information with respect to the Franktin Funds; and (2) truthfully and uniformly acl in
accordance with their stated policies and fiduciary responsibilities 1o the Pranklin Funds, The
Investment Adviser Defendants participated in the wrongdoing complained of herein in order to
prevent the Franklin Funds from knowing of the Investment Adviser Defendants’ breaches of
fiduciary duties including: (1) the charging of the Franklin Funds and Fraoklin ['unds investors
improper Rule 12b-1 marketing fecs; (2) making improper undiscloscd payments of Soft Dollars;
{3) making unauthorized use of “directed brokerage” as a marketing tool; and (4) charging the-
Franklin Funds for excessive and improper commission payments to brokers.

86.  Anareault of the Investment Advisers® mnultiple breaches of their fiduciary dulics
owed 10 the Franklin Funds, the Franklin Funds were damaged.

87.  The I'ranklin Funds are entitled to rescind their investment advisory contracts
with the Investment Adviser Defendanis and recover all fees paid in connection with their

enrollment pursuant to such agrecments,
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COUNT Y

Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against
The Invesiment Adviser Defendants On Bebalf Of The Class

88.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges cach of (he preceding allegations as though tully set
forth herein.

89.  As advisers to (he Franklin Funds the Investment Adviser Defendants were
fiduciarics to the plainti{l and other members of the Class and were required to act with the
highest obligations of good faith, loyalty, fair dealing, due care and candor.

90.  Ags set forth above. the Investment Advicer Nefendunts breached their fiduciary
duties to plainti{f and the Class,

91.  Plaintiff and the Class have been specially injured as a direct, proximate and
foreseeuble resuit of such breach on the part of the Tnvestment Adviser Defendants and have
suffered substantial damages.

92.  Becanse the Investment Adviser Defendants acted with reckless and willful
disvegard for the rights of plaintiff and other members of the Class, the Investment Adviser
Defendants are liable for punitive damages in an amnount to be determined by the jury.

COUNT VI

Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against The Director
Defendants On Behalf Of The Class

93.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the preceding atlegations as thaugh fully set
forth herein.

94,  As Franklin Funds directors and trustees, the Dircctor Defendants had a fiduciary
duty 1o the Irankiin Funds and Franklin Funds investors (o supervise and monitor the Investment

Adviser Defendants.
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95.  The Director Detendants breached their fiduciary duties by reason of the acts
alleged heeein, includimg (heir knowing or reckless failure to prevent the Investment Adviser
Defendants from (1) charging the Franklin Funds and Franklin Funds investors improper Rule
12b-1 marketing fees; (2) making improper undisclosed payments of Soft Dollars; (3) making
unauthorized use of “dirccted brokerage™ as a marketing tool; and (4) charging the Franklin
Funds for extecssive end impropes wounission pay ens 10 brokers,

96.  Plantiff and the Class have been specially injured as a direct, proximate and
foreseeable result of such breach on the part of the Investment Adviser Defendants and have
suffered substantial damages.

97.  Because the Investment Adviser Defendants acted with reckless and willful
disregard for the rights of plaintiff and other members of the Class, the Investment Adviser
Defendants are liable for punitive damages in an amount to be detexmined by the jury.

COUNT Vil

Aiding And Abetting A Breach Of Fiduciary Duty Against
The Investment Adviser Defendants On Behalf Of The Class

98.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the preceding allegations as though Tully set

foxth herein,

99.  Atall times hercin, the broker dealers that sold Franklin Funds had fiduciary
duties of loyalty to their clients, including plaintiff and other members of the Class.

100. The Investment Adviser Defendants knew or should have known that the broker
dealers had these fiduciary duties. |

101, By accepting improper Rute 12b-1 fees. Soft Dollars and excessive enmmissinne

in exchange for aggressively pushing Franklin Funds, and by failing to disclose the receipt of
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such fees, the brokerages breached their iduciary duties to plaintiff and the other members of the

Class.

102, The Investment Adviser Defendants possessed actual or constructive knowledge
that the brokerages were breaching their fiduciary duties, but nonetheless perpetrated the
fraudulent scheme alleged herein,

103, The Investmew Adviser Defendanis® actlons, as descrrbed 1n this complaint, were
a substantial factor in causing the losses suffered by plaintiff and the other members of the class.
By participating in the brokcrages® breaches of fiduciary duties, the Investinent Adviser
Defendants are liable therelor.

[04.  As adirect, proximate and foreseeable result of the Investment Adviser
Defendants’ knowing participation in the brokerages’ breaches of fiduciary duties, plaintiff and
the Class have suffered damages.

105.  Because the Investment Adviser Defendants acted with reckless and willful
disregard for the nghts of plaintitf and other members of the Class, the Investment Adviser
Defendants are liable for punitive damages in an amount to be determined by the jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for rcliel and judgment, as follows:

A, Determining that this action is a proper class action and certifying plaintiff
as the Class representative and Plaintifl*s counsel as Class Counsel ns pursuant 4o Rule 23 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of

defendants® wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon;
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C. Awarding punitive damages in favor of plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of
defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amouat (o be proven at trial, including interest thereon;

D. Awarding the Franklin Funds rescission of their contracts with the
Investment Adviser Defendants, including recovery of all fess which would otherwise apply, and
recovery of all feas paid to the Investment Adviser Defvudauis;

L. Ordering an accounting of all Franklin Funds-related fees, commissions,
and Soft Dollar payments;

K. Ordering restitntion of all unlawfully or discriminatorily obtained fees and
charges;

G. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and
proper, including any cxtraordinary equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by law or
equity to attach, impound or otherwise restricl the defendants’ assets to assure that plaintiff and
tlwe Cluss have an cftective remedy,

1L Awarding plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this action, including counsel fees and expert fecs; and

L Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: March {L 2004

DOCS\8283tvl

SHALOY STONE & BONNER LLP

By: ?m 7.' Emv—a- AW N
Palrick L. Rocco (PR 8621
James P. Bonner
Jermifer A, Sullivan (J§ 6957)
163 Madison Avenue, P.O. Box 1277
Morristown, New Jersey 07962-1277
(673) 775 €097

RABIN, MURRAY & FRANK LLP
Marvin L, Frank

Eric J. Belfi

275 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10016

(212) 682-1818

GLANCY BINKOW & GOLDBERG LLP
Michael M. Goldberg

1801 Avenue of the Stars
Suite 311

Los Angeles, CA 90067
(310) 201-9150

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Class



